
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2022 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: VIRTUAL MEETING (ACCESSIBLE REMOTELY) 

 
Members: Professor Geoffrey Crossick 

(Chairman) 
Randall Anderson (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Christopher Costigan 
 

Dr Paula Haynes 
Michael Herington 
Andrew Mayer 
 

 
 
Enquiries: julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 
Members of the public can observe this public meeting at the below link: 

 
https://youtu.be/Xi6oP9qMRsk 

 
This will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical location. A 
recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of the 
public meeting for up to one municipal year.  
 
Please note: Online meeting recordings do not constitute the formal minutes of the 
meeting; minutes are written and are available on the City of London Corporation’s 
website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the proper officer, to remove any 
inappropriate material. 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/Xi6oP9qMRsk


2 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 9th 
November 2021. 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 – 10) 
4. WORKPLAN 
 

 To note the Committee’s Workplan. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 11 - 14) 

 
5. CITY CORPORATION RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY 
 

 To consider the items set out in highlighting on the workplan. 
 For Discussion 
  

 
6. COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

 To consider the Committee’s Terms of Reference and make any suggestions, if 
appropriate, to the Board of Governors. 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 18) 
7. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 

 Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 19 - 32) 

 
8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

  
 

Part 2 - Non Public Agenda 
 
11. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 9th November 2021. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 33 - 38) 

 
12. RISK REGISTER 
 

 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 39 - 64) 

 
13. MANAGEMENT DASHBOARD 
 

 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 65 - 70) 

 
14. DEEP DIVE: MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 
 

 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 71 - 116) 

 
15. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

Confidential items 
 
17. UPDATE ON TARGET OPERATING MODEL AND LISVANE GOVERNANCE 

REVIEW 
 

 Interim Principal to be heard. 
 For Information 
  

 
18. DEEP DIVE: EQUALITY, DIVERSION AND INCLUSION  UPDATE 
 

 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 
 

 For Information 
  

 



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA 

 
Tuesday, 9 November 2021  

 
Minutes of the virtual meeting held at 10 am and streamed to You Tube: 

https://youtu.be/shH3_rAiTwA  
please note the public recording will be available for 12 months from the date of the meeting  

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Professor Geoffrey Crossick (Chairman) 
Randall Anderson (Deputy Chairman) 
Christopher Costigan 
 

Michael Herington 
Dr Paula Haynes 
Andrew Mayer 
 

In Attendance 
  
Officers: 
Jonathan Vaughan - Interim Principal, Guildhall School of Music and 

Drama 
Graeme Hood - Group Accountant, Guildhall School of Music and 

Drama/Barbican Centre 
Katharine Lewis - Dean and Secretary, Guildhall School of Music 

and Drama 
Jonathon Poyner - Director of Building and Operations, Guildhall 

School of Music and Drama/Barbican Centre 
Matthew Lock - Head of Audit and Risk Management, 

Chamberlain's Department 
Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
There were no apologies. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES  
The following were approved: 
 

4. Public minutes and non-public summary of the Meeting held on 15th July 
2021.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://youtu.be/shH3_rAiTwA


5. Public minutes of the Special Meeting held on 7th September 2021.  
 
Matters arising: 
 
Members noted that the School’s External Auditors were relying on the 
outcome of the Audit of the City of London Corporation’s City’s Cash 
Statements to complete their opinion. The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
advised that this was due for completed next month and an extension had been 
granted to 14th January 2022, by the Office for Students, which would still be in 
good time for the ISTA Review. 
 

6. WORK PLAN  
The Chair advised that this agenda was busier than usual, and that it was 
encouraging that all of the items had been requested by the Committee during 
its previous meetings.   
 
Members noted that, as a decision was pending on the investment from the 
City Corporation,  together with number of other matters critical to the 
implementation of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), a progress report 
on the MTFP would be presented to the Committee on 1st February 2022. 
    
Two issues arising from the City Corporation’s Risk Protocol had originally been 
scheduled for this Committee but, as they were not urgent, they too would be 
deferred to the February Meeting. 
 
There was an item later on the agenda in respect of ‘future deep dives’ and the 
Chairman suggested that one of them was likely to arise from the discussion on 
the deep dives on today’s agenda.    
 
Members noted that two of the deep dives on the agenda had touched on 
staffing/HR matters and were ‘confidential’ in accordance with the City 
Corporation’s Protocol.  The Town Clerk explained that this was an extra level 
of exemption, whereby only those officers directly involved in the drafting of 
such reports can be present when they are discussed at Committee.     
 

7. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT  
The Committee considered the Internal Audit Update report of the Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk Management.   
 
During the discussion and questions, the following points were noted: 
 
a) Sector Guidance relates to the Higher Education Sector, the CUC Code of 

Practice and other relevant Office for Students Guidance.  Internal 
Governance is specific to the School’s management structure and its 
internal committees and boards.  

 
b) The Head of Audit and Risk Management agreed to define the split 

between mandatory and non-mandatory recommendations in student 
housing and circulate this to Members.  Members noted that all but 2 of the 

Page 6



green recommendations in the Code of Compliance Review related to 
mandatory elements of the Code.  

 
c) Members noted an update since the publication of the report in that the 

School had sufficient capacity to cover two data quality reviews in respect 
of financial returns and research.  The research data quality review would 
cover:  (a)  the process in respect of the recent REF submission, together 
with lessons learnt and preparations for what might be the data 
requiremenrs of the next REF cycle; and (2) HESA’s Business and 
Community Interaction survey, how the School might improve the potential 
income return.   The Chair and Members welcomed this approach as both 
the Committee and the School need assurance in both areas.     

 
d) In respect of facilities management,  it has been necessary to prioritise a 

number of matters; i.e. – those categorised in terms of risk to life, business 
critical and other variables, over the implementation of some 
recommendations.  However, the Director of Operations and Buildings 
gave assurance that none were critical.   Members noted that evidence had 
been produced and was being validated by Internal Audit.     The Principal 
advised that the Director had inherited a lot of issues on the estate, 
presenting high risks to health and safety, and had managed a restructure 
through a very difficult time. The Director further advised that the alignment 
with city processes had required standardisation of processes, but this 
work was progressing well.   

 
e) Student Affairs would be completed by 19th November.  Members noted 

that, although this had been categorised as ‘amber’, it was likely that the 
rating resulted from the way in which the information had initially been 
recorded and presented, rather than being due to an area of specific 
concern. 

 
f) Whilst noting the delay in the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), it was 

suggested that it might be helpful for the Committee to gain assurance of a 
structured and systematic approach to its progression, setting out a 
timetable of objectives and any conditional arrangements which might vary 
it.  The Principal agreed to provide a skeletal framework in his report to the 
Board on 22nd November.  Internal Audit would then be able to give 
assurance as to the correct control environment being in place to deliver it. 

 
g) There are a number of vacancies in key areas of the school, with Registry 

currently running at 1/3 vacancies; 1/3 new in post and a further recent 
resignation.  Members noted that the resignations had been for different 
and valid reasons,  and most staff were required to give one month’s 
notice.  Furthermore, re-evaluating job descriptions also took about a 
month. As a consequence it was not easy to get replacements in place and 
the consequent vacancies has a serious impact on the Registry’s work. 

 
h) The volume of work across the School had grown very substantially and it 

was recognised that it needs to build capacity and resilience.  As  an 
outcome of the pandemic, there had been an increase in mental health 

Page 7



issues and case work, which can have a severe impact on a small 
institution. Furthermore, the regulatory framework continues to generate a 
lot of additional work.   It was suggested that this should be a risk in its own 
right and the Chair suggested discussing this further under the report on 
the Risk Register.  

 
The Committee fully accepted the above issues and, given that similar 
problems might occur in the future, suggested that future target dates be 
scheduled to ensure that they were realistic.   
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no urgent items.  
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
as follows:- 

Item Paragraph 
12-15 3 
18-19 2 

20 - 
 

11. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 15th July 2021 were approved.  
 

12. UPDATE ON THE TARGET OPERATING MODEL (TOM) AND LISVANE 
GOVERNANCE REVIEW  
The Principal was heard. 
 

13. OVERVIEW OF SCHOOL STATUTORY RETURNS - 2020/21 CYCLE  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 

14. ONGOING CONDITIONS OF REGISTRATION WITH THE OFFICE FOR 
STUDENTS (OFS)  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 

15. GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA RISK REGISTER  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 

16. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  

Page 8



 
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 

AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no urgent items.  
 

18. EQUALITY DIVERSION AND INCLUSION (EDI)  
The Committee received a report of the Principal, 
 

19. HUMAN RESOURCES  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 

20. FUTURE DEEP DIVES FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE  
The Chairman and Principal were heard.    
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.15 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School - Work Programme: January 2022  update  
 

 

CATEGORIES  1st February 2022 

 

6th June 2022 

 

8th September 2022 4th November 2022 

Matters arising: 
 
 
 

TOM/LISVANE PROGRESS 
 
 

TOM/LISVANE 
PROGRESS 

  

Accounts/Finan
cial: 
 
 
 
 

Progress report on the Medium 
Term Financial Plan 
 

 Financial Statements  

Deep Dives 
 
 

1. Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 

2. EDI 

TBC TBC TBC 

Risk 
Management: 
 
 
 

 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Internal Audit: 
 
 
 

 
Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 

 
Internal Audit Year 
End/Annual Report for 
2021/22 

 

Internal Audit Update Internal Audit Update 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School - Work Programme: January 2022  update  
 

Governance: 
 
 

 
Committee’s Terms of Reference 
 
 
City Corporation Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy 
 
To consider whether any of the items  
below might benefit from an annual 
review, particularly those highlighted* 

a. How do senior management support 
and promote risk management? 

b. How well are officers equipped and 
supported to manage risk well? 

c. How is City Corporation’s Risk Policy 
and Strategy being embedded? 

d. Are there effective arrangements for 
managing risks with partners*? 

e. How do departmental processes 
promote effective risk management? 

f. How are risks identified, assessed, 
handled and report at Officer and 
Committee levels? 

g. How does risk management 
contributes to achieving successful 
School outcomes*? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

P
age 12



Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School - Work Programme: January 2022  update  
 

External 
Evaluations and 
Assessments: 
 
 

    

 
External 
Regulations and 
Reports: 
 
 

   14. Ongoing conditions of 
registration with the 
Office for Students 
(OfS)  
 
Members suggested that it 
might be helpful to include the 
relevant data sets, which are 
pertinent to the OfS 
judgement. 

 P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 14



Audit & Risk Management Committee – Terms of Reference 
 

The Audit and Risk Management Committee must: 

 

• be independent 

• have sufficient authority and resources to form an opinion and report on the risk 

management, control and governance arrangements of the Guildhall School to the 

Board of Governors 

• be able to satisfy itself that the institution has adequate arrangements for ensuring 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

These terms of reference have been formally approved by the Board of Governors. 

 

Constitution 

 

1. The Board of Governors has established a committee of the Board of Governors 

known as the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

 

Membership 

 

2. The Committee and its chair shall be appointed by the Board of Governors, from 

among its own members, and must consist of governors with no executive 

responsibility for the management of the Guildhall School.  There shall be no fewer 

than three members; a quorum shall be at least three members.  The Chairman of 

the Board of Governors shall not be a member of the Committee.  Members shall 

not have significant interests in the Guildhall School. 

 

3. At least one member should have recent and relevant experience in finance, 

accounting or auditing.  The Committee may, if it considers it necessary or 

desirable, co-opt members with particular expertise.  No member of the Committee 

may also be a member of a Finance or Resources Committee (or equivalent) of 

the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School. 

 

Attendance at meetings 

 

 

4. The Vice Principal, Director of Advancement on behalf of the Principal of the 

Guildhall School of Music & Drama, along with the Head of Finance and Business 

Administration (Chamberlain’s Department) and the Head of Internal Audit and 

Risk Management (Chamberlain’s Department) shall normally attend or be 

represented at meetings. When appropriate, such other representatives of the 

Guildhall School of Music & Drama and the City of London Corporation shall also 

attend where business relevant to them is to be discussed. 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



5. At its discretion, the Committee may also convene a meeting, or part of a meeting, 

without any officers present (save for the clerk who shall attend to take a record of 

the meeting, unless otherwise instructed by the Committee), or with the external 

and/or internal auditors without any other officers present (save for the clerk, as 

previously noted). 

 

Frequency of meetings 

 

6. Meetings shall normally be held at least three times in each financial year. The 

external auditors, the Chair or the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 

may request a meeting if they consider it necessary. 

 

Authority 

 

7. The Committee is authorised by the Board of Governors to investigate any activity 

within its terms of reference.  It is authorised to seek any information it requires 

from any employee, and all employees are directed to co-operate with any request 

made by the Committee. 

 

8. The Committee is authorised by the Board of Governors to obtain outside legal or 

other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of non-

members with relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary, 

normally in consultation with the Principal of the Guildhall School and/or Chairman 

of the Board of Governors.  However, it may not incur direct expenditure in this 

respect in excess of £5,000, without the prior approval of the Board of Governors. 

 

9. The Audit and Risk Management Committee will review the audit aspects of the 

Guildhall School’s draft Income & Expenditure Account for the year ending 31 July.  

These aspects will include the external audit opinion, the statement of Governors’ 

responsibilities, the statement of internal control and any relevant issue raised by 

the external auditors.  The Committee should, where appropriate, confirm with the 

internal and external auditors that the effectiveness of the internal control systems 

has been reviewed, and comment on this in its annual report to the Board of 

Governors. 

 

Duties 

 

10. The duties of the Committee shall be: 

 

a. To discuss if necessary with the external auditors, before the audit begins, the 

nature and scope of their audit as it relates to the Guildhall School. 

 

b. To discuss if necessary with the external auditors problems and reservations 

arising from their audit, including a review of the external auditors’ report to the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee, and any other matters the external 

auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of officers where necessary). 

 

Page 16



c. To review the internal auditors’ audit risk assessment, strategy and programme, 

and to consider major findings of internal audit investigations and 

management's response. 

 

d. To keep under review the effectiveness of the risk management, control and 

governance arrangements.  The scope covers consideration of risks including 

but not limited to key operational risks; security risks relating to digital and  IT 

systems; risks relating to data privacy (GDPR) and data governance; legal and 

regulatory risks; academic risks; reputational risks.  

 

e. To review the external auditors’ report, the internal auditors' annual report, and 

management responses and to monitor other assurance such as external 

reviews.   

 

f. To monitor the implementation of agreed audit-based recommendations from 

whatever source. 

 

g. To ensure that all significant losses have been properly investigated and that 

the internal and external auditors, and where appropriate the Office for Students 

accounting officer, have been informed. 

 

h. To oversee the Guildhall School’s compliance with the City of London’s policy 

on fraud and irregularity, including being notified of any action taken under that 

policy. 

 

i. To satisfy itself that satisfactory arrangements are in place to ensure the 

sustainability of the institution and to promote economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness. This may include consideration of arrangements that support the 

culture and behaviour that is prevalent within the institution, and that ensure the 

effective management of conflicts of interest.  

 

j. To satisfy itself that satisfactory arrangements are in place to ensure 

appropriate and accurate data returns are made to external stakeholders and 

regulatory bodies.  

 

k. To receive any relevant reports from the National Audit Office, Office for 

Students, and other organisations. 

 

l. To consider elements of the Guildhall School’s draft Income & Expenditure 

Account for the year ending 31 July in the presence of the external auditors if 

necessary, including the auditors’ formal opinion, the statement of Governors’ 

responsibilities and the statement of internal control, in accordance with OfS’s 

Accounts Directions. 

 

m. To receive the Guildhall School’s management accounts. 

 

Reporting procedures 

 

Page 17



11. The minutes of meetings of the Committee will be circulated to all members of the 

Board of Governors. 

 

12. The Committee will prepare an annual report covering the year to 31 July and any 

significant issues up to the date of preparing the report.  The report will be 

addressed to the Board of Governors and the Principal, summarising the activity 

for the year.  It will give the Committee’s opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness 

of the Guildhall School’s arrangements for the following: 

 

• risk management, control and governance (the risk management element 

includes the adequacy of the statement of internal control accompanying the 

Income & Expenditure account for the year ending 31 July)  

 

• ensuring sustainability and the promotion of economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness (value for money). 

 

This opinion should be based on the information presented to the Committee.  The 

Audit and Risk Management Committee’s annual report should normally be 

submitted to the Board of Governors before the Governors’ responsibility statement 

accompanying the Income & Expenditure account for the year ending 31 July is 

signed. 

 

In line with the Higher Education Code of Governance, the Audit Committee will 

ensure that the annual corporate governance statement includes a description of 

the work of the Remuneration Committee. 

 

The Audit and Risk Management Committee will periodically undertake a review of 

its own terms of reference and its own effectiveness and recommend any 

necessary changes to the Board of Governors. 

 

Clerking arrangements 

 

13. The clerk to the Audit and Risk Management Committee shall be the clerk to the 

Board of Governors. 
 

Page 18



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 
School of Music & Drama 

01/02/2022 
  

Subject: Internal Audit Update Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Head of Audit & Risk Management For Information 

Report author: Cirla Peall, Audit Manager 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report has been prepared to provide Members with an update in respect of 
Internal Audit activity related to the Guildhall School since the November meeting of 
this Committee. Audit Plan delivery for 2021-22 is in progress and formal Internal 
Audit follow-up of recommendations is ongoing to enable the provision of a revised 
assurance opinion for each previously completed audit.   
 
As at mid-January 2022 there are no live red priority recommendations and 15 live 
amber priority recommendations which arose from 4 audits. 
 
Details of planned audit coverage for 2022-23 are provided. 
 
 Recommendation(s)  

Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the report 

• Consider the appropriateness of the delays in high priority recommendations 
implementation 

• Provide input to high level audit planning proposals for 2022-23 by suggesting 
potential areas of coverage.  

 

Main Report 

Background 
 
1. This Committee receives regular updates in respect of delivery of Internal Audit 

work and the implementation of Audit recommendations.   
 

2. A summary of outcomes is reported for finalised audit work i.e. where full 
management responses have been received and agreed, and there is a reminder 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



of the scope of audit for those audits where draft reports have been issued and 
management responses are awaited.  

 
3. In terms of high priority recommendations, this report provides Members with the 

latest implementation position, based upon information received from Guildhall 
School management and Internal Audit follow-up undertaken. 

 
Current Position 

Delivery of Internal Audit Work 
 
4. The status of 2021-22 Plan delivery is outlined in Appendix 1.  Internal Audit will 

continue to liaise with Guildhall School management to plan delivery of the 
remaining assignments, scoping audit coverage to enable the provision of an 
annual opinion on the robustness of the School’s systems of risk management, 
control and governance, and an opinion on the adequacy of the City of London 
Corporation’s overall system of internal control. 
 

5. Audit Plan delivery progress since the last update can be summarised as: 
 

• One audit (Data Quality: Financial) is on hold in order to prioritise an 
examination of Data Quality: Research.  

• Fieldwork is nearing completion in respect of the Data Quality: Research 
audit. 

• Three formal follow-ups have been completed. 

• Two of the follow-ups related to one audit (UUK Code of Practice).  

• There has been no movement in respect of the assurance rating for one audit 
subject to formal follow-up (Facilities Management & Maintenance). 

• There has been movement from a moderate to a substantial assurance rating 
in the other audit subject to formal follow-up (UUK Code of Practice). 

 
6. Internal Audit continues to liaise with Guildhall School management on the 

remainder of the Audit Plan to facilitate completion within the current year. 
 

Data Quality: Research 
 
7. Initially, the focus of the 2021-22 Data Quality audit was Financial Returns but 

Internal Audit was asked by School management to prioritise an examination in 
respect of Research data; the former has been put on hold and the latter is in 
progress. The scope of audit is to evaluate the adequacy of the control 
framework for ensuring the quality of research data, and fieldwork is nearing 
completion.  Testing has focused on verification and validation of data that falls 
within the scope of the School’s Research Excellence Framework and 
Knowledge Exchange (Higher Education Innovation Fund & Higher Education 
Business & Community Interaction Survey) returns. 
 

8. A summary of the outcome of this audit will be reported to this Committee 
following report finalisation. 

 
 

Page 20



GSMD & Barbican - Facilities Management & Maintenance: First Follow-Up  
 
9. A formal follow-up exercise was carried out in respect of this 2020-21 Audit.  

Internal Audit confirmed implementation of only four recommendations, resulting 
in no change to the overall assurance rating of ‘moderate’.  

 

Audit: Facilities Management & Maintenance 

Final Report 
Date: 

March 
2021 

Issues 
Raised: 

14 Original 
Assurance Rating: 

Moderate 

Follow-up 
Review 

December 
2021  

Issues 
Resolved: 

4 Revised 
Assurance Rating: 

Moderate 

 

10. Revised target timescales have been received for implementation of 8 of the 
outstanding recommendations between January and June 2022.  Internal Audit 
will undertake a second follow-up exercise in June 2022, as agreed with Guildhall 
School Management. 

 
UUK Code of Practice - First & Second Follow-Ups  
 
11. Two formal follow-up exercises were carried out in respect of this 2020-21 Audit: 

a first follow-up in November 2021 and, at the request of UUK, a second follow-
up was carried out in December 2021.  Internal Audit confirmed implementation 
of all recommendations, resulting in a substantial assurance rating.   

 

Audit: UUK Code of Practice 

Final Report 
Date: 

August 
2021 

Issues 
Raised: 

12 Original Assurance 
Rating: 

Moderate 

1st Follow-up 
Review 

November 
2021 

Issues 
Resolved: 

6 Revised Assurance 
Rating: 

Moderate 

2nd Follow-up 
Review 

December 
2021  

Issues 
Resolved: 

12 Revised Assurance 
Rating: 

Substantial 

 

Forward Plan 
 
Audit Work Programme 2022-23 
 
12. The Internal Audit programme of work for 2022-23 is attached at Appendix 2 and 

contains two categories: shortlisted items, which are considered higher priority 
and, longlisted items, from which we may form the balance of the 2022-23 
Internal Audit Plan.   
 

13. Internal Audit assurance activity is expected to comprise three or four reviews, 
depending on the scale and depth of coverage. Provisional follow-up exercises 
are shown and will proceed dependent upon the outcomes of four live 2021-22 
audits: Data Quality: 1) Research, 2) Finance, Medium Term Financial Planning 
and Governance.  Members of this Committee are invited to highlight potential 
areas / themes for audit review in 2022-23. 

 
 

Page 21



Live High Priority Recommendations 
 
14. Internal Audit follow-up is undertaken promptly once target timescales have been 

reached and a revised assurance opinion is provided on the basis of the follow-
up outcome. As at mid-January 2022, there are no live red priority 
recommendations and 15 live amber priority recommendations.  A summary of 
the recommendations is attached at Appendix 3 and reflects that: 
 

• The recommendations span four audits. 

• The original target dates have passed for all 15 recommendations. 

• Second follow-ups are scheduled in respect of 2 audits for April 2022 (3 
recommendations) and June 2022 (10 recommendations). 
 

15. Guildhall School management continue to be reminded of the importance of 
setting realistic timescales for demonstrating recommendations implementation, 
reducing the need for second and third follow-up exercises.  
 

Corporate & Strategic Implications 
 
16. The overall Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide assurance as to the 

adequacy of the City of London Corporation’s systems of internal control and 
governance.  This programme of activity is aligned with the Corporate Plan, 
Corporate Risk Register and Departmental Top Risks.  The Guildhall School, as 
an institutional department of the Corporation, has a sub-section of the Plan and 
a programme of Internal Audit work that includes audit assignments and regular 
follow-up activity in respect of recommendations implementation.  

 
Conclusion 
 
17. Members are asked to note the findings of completed Internal Audit work, the 

current position of the 2021-22 Audit Plan and the status of open high priority 
recommendations as at mid-January 2022.  Recent completion of follow-up 
exercises has resulted in maintenance of a moderate assurance opinion for one 
audit – with a second follow-up scheduled for June 2022 - and movement to a 
substantial assurance opinion for a second audit. Planned Internal Audit 
coverage for 2022-23 has been set out. 
 

Appendices 

• Appendix 1: 2021-22 Guildhall School Audit Plan Progress 

• Appendix 2: Indicative Programme of Audit Work 2022-23 

• Appendix 3: Live High Priority Recommendations 
 

Cirla Peall 
Audit Manager, Chamberlain’s Department 
Cirla.peall@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 22



Appendix 1 
 

Internal Audit Work 2021-22 
 

Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations Raised 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student 
Housing (The Code) – including non-mandatory elements 
 
The Code sets out what constitutes good practice in the 
management of student accommodation, covering areas 
including health and safety, repairs and maintenance, and 
relationships between managers and student tenants; it includes 
both ‘Mandatory’ and ‘Non-Mandatory’ requirements. This audit 
sought to provide assurance that that the Guildhall School 
complies with both the Mandatory and non-mandatory elements 
of the Code. 

 

 
Complete 

 
Moderate 

 
0 

 
7 
 

 
5 

 
12 

Data Quality: Research - independent verification/validation of 
data submissions as part of a rolling programme of checks.   
 
An annual check to provide assurance of integrity in terms of 
process and systems used to capture and prepare the data for 
submission.  Initially this annual check was focused on Financial 
Returns but at the request of the School, this work was paused in 
favour of a review in respect of a review of Research Data.  
 

 
In 

Progress 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 
 

 
- 

 
- 

Data Quality: Finance - independent verification/validation of data 
submissions as part of a rolling programme of checks.   
 

 
On Hold 

     

P
age 23



Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations Raised 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Medium Term Financial Planning - to provide independent 
assurance on implementation of the Plan and delivery against 
this.   
 
Members of the GSMD Audit & Risk Management Committee 
have requested that this incorporate a look at how progress is 
measured against KPIs, targets and objectives, specifically in 
terms of the discussions with the City in respect of investment 
sought by the School, and projects emerging in the second phase 
of the Plan. 
 

 
Not 

Initiated 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Governance 

Provision of assurance in respect of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal governance arrangements, in-line with 
sector and regulator guidance and requirements. 

 

Not 
Initiated 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS RAISED 0 7 5 12 

 

Project Current 
Stage 

Revised 
Assurance 

Rating 

Recommendations 
Outstanding 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Audit Follow-Ups 

Guildhall Young Artists: Follow-Up of 2020-21 Audit – first follow-
up 
 
Follow-up of the audit finalised in April 2021 and which had a 
moderate assurance opinion. Sufficient evidence was received to 
demonstrate full implementation of six recommendations and 

 
 
 

Complete 

 
 
 

Substantial 
 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

3 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

4 

P
age 24



Project Current 
Stage 

Revised 
Assurance 

Rating 

Recommendations 
Outstanding 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

partial implementation of four recommendations, resulting in a 
substantial assurance opinion as at September 2021. A second 
follow-up exercise will be carried out in April 2022, in line with 
revised target implementation dates. 
 

GSMD & Barbican Facilities Management & Maintenance: 
Follow-Up of 2020-21 Audit – first follow-up 
 
Follow-up of the audit finalised in March 2021 and which had a 
moderate assurance opinion. A second follow-up exercise will be 
carried out in June 2022, in line with revised target 
implementation dates. 
 

 
Complete 

 
Moderate 

 
 

 
- 

 
10 

 
- 

 
10 

UUK Follow-Up of 2020-21 Audit – first and second follow-ups 

Follow-up of the audit finalised in August 2021 and which had a 
moderate assurance opinion.  The first and second follow-ups 
were carried out in November and December 2021 respectively, 
with the latter resulting in a substantial assurance opinion.  

 

Complete 

 

Substantial 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING AT FOLLOW-UP 0 13 1 14 

 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 26



Appendix 2 

 
GSMD Internal Audit Programme 2022-23 

 

Areas of Audit Coverage Internal Audit Comment 

Shortlist – high priority coverage 

Audit: Safeguarding 
 

Provision of independent assurance in respect of the School’s overall 
safeguarding arrangements. 

Audit: Cyber Security 
 

Provision of independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the key controls related to cyber security to minimise the risk of 
unauthorised access impacting on information confidentiality, service 
delivery and network integrity and availability. 

Follow-Up: Guildhall Young Artists  Second follow-up exercise, scheduled for April 2022, focused on the 
recommendations outstanding from the 2020-21 audit. 

Follow-Up: Facilities Management & Maintenance  Second follow-up exercise, scheduled for June 2022, focused on the 
recommendations outstanding from the 2020-21 audit.  

Follow-Up: Data Quality: 1) Research, 2) Finance  Dependent upon the outcome of the 2021-22 audits. 

Follow-Up: Medium Term Financial Planning Dependent upon the outcome of the 2021-22 audit. 

Follow-Up: Governance Dependent upon the outcome of the 2021-22 audit. 

Longlist – potential additional areas 
 

Health and Safety  Rolling programme, specific theme to be determined. 

Data Quality Independent verification/validation of data submissions as part of a rolling 
programme to provide assurance of integrity in terms of process and 
systems used to capture and prepare the data for submission. 

 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 28



Appendix 3 

Schedule of GSMD Live High Priority Recommendations as at mid-January 2022  
 

Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

Student Affairs – February 2019 

1.  Student Affairs (MK 2808) - Review of service provision to provide 
ongoing assurance that delivery is effective and represents value 
for money. 

Student Affairs management should ensure that: 

• Periodic service reviews are undertaken, considering alternative 
delivery models where appropriate;  

• Such reviews should be documented to demonstrate the process 
followed and the outcome, including relevant cost implications to 
facilitate approval by an appropriate party;  

• The impact of any delivery model changes implemented should be 
monitored and reported to an appropriate forum such as the 
Operations Board. 

Amber 30/09/19 31/10/21 Internal Audit Comment 
A revised target timescale of 
October 2021 was proposed 
by the Secretary & Dean of 
Students at the April 2021 
meeting of the School’s Audit 
& Risk Management 
Committee; the timing reflects 
when the Student Affairs 
Annual Report for 2020-21 is 
due to be presented.  

No management update 
received. 

Medium Term Financial Plan – March 2021 

2. Medium Term Financial Plan (MK 3647): Timetable and 
Responsibilities for Creation, Review and Approval 
 

A timetable for the creation, review and sign off of the School's MTFP, 
including clear definition of responsibilities should be drawn up, 
approved and disseminated to key stakeholders. 
 

Amber 30/06/21 30/09/21 Internal Audit Comment 
A management status update 
has been requested as the 
revised target timescale has 
been reached. 
 
No management update 
received. 

P
age 29



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

Guildhall Young Artists – April 2021 

3. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3733): Peterborough CYM Information 
Flow 

GYA Management should review the arrangements for information 
flow from the Peterborough CYM Board to facilitate effective oversight 
and to help ensure that the School’s interests are adequately 
protected.  

Amber 28/05/21 31/03/22 Internal Audit Comment: 
These recommendations 
were assessed as partially 
implemented at formal follow-
up.  
 
Revised target dates have 
been provided for 
demonstration of full 
implementation and a second 
follow-up will be carried out in 
April 2022. 

4. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3780): Accounts Receivable Controls 

GYA accounts receivable processes should incorporate an adequate 
separate of duties to facilitate independent checking of invoices raised 
against amounts due, transparent debt recovery arrangements, and 
regular reconciliation of amounts received, income banked and 
general ledger postings. 

Amber 16/07/21 31/12/21 

5. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3781): Regular Financial Reporting 

Budget monitoring reports should be circulated to budget holders on a 
regular, monthly basis, and finance meetings convened at regular 
intervals across the GYA programme. 

Amber 16/07/21 31/12/21 

Barbican & GSMD – Facilities Management & Maintenance – March 2021 

6. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management (MK3649): 
Reporting to the Executive Board 

The Principal should ensure that the Guildhall School's Management 
Information Dashboard is presented to Members of the School's 
Executive Board, on a quarterly basis 

 

Amber 30/06/21 Internal Audit Comment: 
 
A first follow-up has been completed and 
confirmed that 4 recommendations out of 
14 had been implemented. Revised target 
timescales have been received for 
implementation of 8 of the remaining 

P
age 30



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

7. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3650) 

The Head of Engineering Projects should determine appropriate 
productivity targets and wider performance measures for the 
Engineering Team and implement a framework for monitoring 
performance accordingly, in order to drive the necessary 
improvements in performance. 

Amber 30/09/21 recommendations, ranging from January 
to June 2022.  A second follow-up 
exercise will be carried out in June 2022. 
 
  

8. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3652) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that the 
accuracy and completeness of Programmed Maintenance tasks within 
the Micad and Agility systems are periodically verified. 

Amber 31/05/21 

9. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK3656) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement a framework 
for monitoring the quality of Programmed Maintenance, completed by 
both Skanska and the Engineering Team. 

Amber 15/07/21 

10. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3660) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that all water 
management tasks are set out within the Programmed Maintenance 
Schedules. 

Amber 31/05/21 

11. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3661) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement an 
appropriate action plan to ensure that all outstanding all Gas Safety, 
Electrical Safety and Water Management tasks are completed. 
 

Amber 15/07/21 

P
age 31



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

12. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3664) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement a framework 
for monitoring the quality of Reactive Maintenance, completed by both 
Skanska and the Engineering Team. 

Amber 15/07/21 

13. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3665) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that the skills 
analysis exercise is completed in an appropriate timeframe. 

Amber 30/09/21 

14. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3666) 
The Head of Engineering and projects should enhance monitoring 
arrangements to ensure that quoted works are subject to approval 
prior to works being initiated. 

Amber 31/05/21 

15. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3667) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement 
arrangements for verifying the accuracy of reactive maintenance tasks 
recorded as 'completed' in Micad. 

Amber 31/05/21 

 

P
age 32



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Workplan
	6 Committee's Terms of Reference
	7 Internal Audit Update
	Appendix 1 Internal Audit Work 2021-22_Feb 2022 ARMC
	Appendix 2 GSMD Audit Programme 2022_23
	Appendix 3 GSMD Live High Priority Recommendations - Feb 2022

	11 Non Public Minutes
	12 Risk Register
	Appendix 1 - Detailed departmental risk register
	Appendix 2 - Summary service risks and actions

	13 Management Dashboard
	Copy of 1_GSMD_Finance Review and Management Information_Dec 2021

	14 Deep Dive: Medium Term Financial Plan
	MTFP Appendix 1 - Business Recovery Plan 2021-2025
	MTFP Appendix 2 - Report to the Governing Board Feb 2021


